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Dear Bob 

ABORIGINAL HERITAGE DUE DILIGENCE ASSESSMENT UPDATE – ROSEDALE GARDENS  

This assessment has been prepared as an update to an existing Aboriginal Heritage Due Diligence Assessment 
undertaken by Biosis in 2016 for a proposed rezoning of land located at 440 Clergate Road and 463 Leeds Parade 
in Orange NSW. The site is associated with several previously recorded Aboriginal sites or places. As part of the 
rezoning process, an Aboriginal Heritage Due Diligence assessment has been undertaken to inform future 
development planning.  

This assessment has been undertaken in accordance with the guidelines prepared in 2010 by the Department of 
Climate Change and Water (DECCW, 2010) [formerly Office of Environment and Heritage (OEH) now Heritage 
NSW] Due Diligence Code of Practice for the Protection of Aboriginal Objects in New South Wales. The aim of the 
guidelines is to assist individuals and organisations to exercise due diligence when carrying out activities that may 
harm Aboriginal objects. This assessment includes recommendations regarding Aboriginal heritage constraints 
for the proposed works. 

Consultation with the Aboriginal community is not a formal requirement of the Due Diligence process and has 
not been undertaken as part of this assessment.  

1.1 Study area  

The proposed rezoning site is located in the Orange Local Government Area (LGA) within the County of Wellington 
and Parish of March. The study area falls within the Orange Local Aboriginal Land Council (LALC) boundary.  

The study area is located across several land parcels: 

• Lot 2 DP255983 

• Lot 3 DP255983 

• Lot 14 DP6694 

• Lot 25 DP6694 

• Lot 15 DP6694 

The study area is also bound by Clergate Road and the main western railway on the west and Pearce Lane in the 
north.  
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1.2 Proposed Works and Project Background  

Premise Australia Pty Ltd has been commissioned by Rosedale Gardens Estate Pty Ltd to prepare a planning 
proposal to amend the Orange Local Environmental Plan 2011 (OLEP) in respect of land at 463 Leeds Parade and 
440 Clergate Road, Orange. 

The proposed works would involve rezoning of lots from a combination of large lot residential, environmental 
management, infrastructure and public recreation to large lot residential. The proposal entails the rezoning of the 
site to allow for a greater area of R5 Large Lot Residential zoned land and a reduction of the minimum lot size 
from a combination of 4,000 square metres (m2) and 8,000 m2 to 2,000 m2, together with the introduction of 
specific additional permitted use mapping and clauses to introduce a density limit and ensure tree protection. A 
lot yield limit of 700 is proposed. 

The proposal has been developed in response to changes in the residential development market that have 
emerged since the original rezoning of the site was agreed, including increased demand for smaller housing lots 
within large lot residential areas in the City of Orange and the introduction of the Biodiversity Conservation Act 
2016. 

As part of the proposed rezoning works an Aboriginal Cultural heritage assessment was undertaken on the subject 
land (Biosis 2016). Prior to submission of the Planning Proposal and subsequent discussions with Heritage NSW 
an update to the Aboriginal Heritage Due Diligence assessment is required to address cultural heritage sensitivity 
of the site.  

1.3 Heritage NSW Consultation 

Recent correspondence with Heritage NSW and Premise (email dated 31 August 2022) confirmed that prior to 
development, further heritage investigations were requested, in the form of an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage 
Assessment (ACHAR). Premise advice and confirmation from Heritage NSW indicated that as part of the proposed 
rezoning: 

• The maximum lot yield will not exceed 700 lots. 

• Out of the 290 hectare site, around 20 hectares of land may be allocated for protection of sensitive landforms 
or sites (if needed). 

• If the detailed investigations reveal the need for a greater area of protection, the resulting outcome would 
be delivery of less lots than the anticipated maximum. This is understood by the applicant.  

• The current proposal to rezone those areas of the site not currently identified as R5, to R5, means that 
flexibility exists to design an appropriate subdivision layout that takes full account of identified site 
sensitivities, such as those that may be identified through biodiversity, archaeological, stormwater or other 
detailed investigations. 

Heritage NSW subsequently confirmed that, although an ACHAR and test excavation program prior to rezoning 
is preferred, this assessment can be deferred to the DA stage. This advice was based on the understanding that 
the results of the test excavations, and the ACHAR, will be used to inform the final design of the subdivision, 
including avoidance of identified significant Aboriginal cultural heritage values where possible. 

1.4 Desktop Assessment  

A review of the Orange Abattoir Archaeological Survey Report prepared by Biosis (2016) was undertaken by 
Premise’s archaeologist Latisha Ryall to understand the context of the site with reference to Aboriginal cultural 
heritage and to inform preparation of the updated due diligence assessment.  

Biosis recommendations for the site indicates that further archaeological investigations are to be undertaken on 
areas that have been identified as having a Potential Archaeological Deposit (PAD). Premise agrees with this 
recommendation.  

Biosis’s recommendations for Aboriginal Heritage management and review by Premise are outlined in Table 1.   







1.5 Previously Identified Sites – AHIMS 

NSW Heritage (formerly OEH) maintains the Aboriginal Heritage Information Management System (AHIMS) 
database, a register of Aboriginal archaeological sites that have been recorded in New South Wales. The AHIMS 
search provides an archaeological context for the area and identifies whether any previously recorded Aboriginal 
sites are located within or near the study area.  

*The locations and details of Aboriginal sites are considered culturally sensitive information. It is
recommended that this information, including the AHIMS data, is removed from this report if it is to enter
the public domain.

A basic search of the AHIMS database was undertaken on 31 August 2022 (Client ID: 713404) using the same 
parameters previously undertaken by Biosis in 2016. The search parameters are as follows:  

GDA 1994 MGA 55 691800 – 703200mE 
6317800 – 6325200mN 

Buffer   (inclusive of 200m Buffer) 

Number of Sites  

This search revealed 34 sites, which showed an increase of 28 sites since the original assessment was prepared, 
however these additional sites reflect new sites recorded from the 2016 Biosis assessment. On review of the data, 
it appears that 20 sites are located within the study area boundary. The AHIMS sites are shown in Figure 1 and a 
copy of the AHIMS search is provided in Appendix A.  

The nature and location of registered sites reflects past Aboriginal occupation of the land; however, the sites are 
also influenced by historical land-use, and the nature and extent of previous archaeological investigations. 
Although Aboriginal occupation covered the whole of the landscape, the availability of fresh water, and associated 
resources, was a significant factor in repeated and long-term occupation of specific areas within the landscape.  

Figure 1 – AHIMS Sites and Site Locality 
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In summary, this updated Aboriginal heritage investigation as undertaken by the Premise archaeologist 
demonstrates that no changes to the landform have occurred since the original Biosis report was prepared in 
2016. Premise also supports that further Aboriginal Heritage investigations are required across the site prior to 
any ground disturbing activities occur, however, this should occur at the DA stage.  

Yours sincerely 

 
LATISHA RYALL 
Archaeologist 
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